
  
 
 
 
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Kate Spencer, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207014 

Email: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk  

(i) 

HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
 

A meeting of Health Scrutiny Board will be held on 
 

Thursday, 4 October 2012 
 

commencing at 5.30 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

Monday, 24 September 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Barnby (Chairman) 

Councillor Mills 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Davies (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Doggett 

 

Councillor McPhail 

Councillor Parrott 

Councillor Thomas (J) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Working for a healthy, prosperous and happy Bay 



 

HEALTH SCRUTINY BOARD 
AGENDA 

 
 
1.   Election of Chairman  
 To elect a Chairman of the Board for the ensuing Municipal Year. 

 
2.   Apologies  
 To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the committee membership. 
 

3.   Appointment of Vice-chairman  
 To consider appointing a Vice-chairman of the Board for 2012/2013. 

 
4.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 To confirm as correct records the Minutes of the meeting of the Board 

held on 19 July 2012. 
 

5.   Declarations of interests  
 a) To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 

items on this agenda 
 

For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 

 
b) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in 

respect of items on this agenda 
 
For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public have 
a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not improperly 
seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A completed disclosure 
of interests form should be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion 
of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Democratic 
Services or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 

 
 

6.   Urgent items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
7.   Dementia Services (Pages 5 - 

19)  David Somerfield (Medical Director of Devon Partnership NHS Trust) 
and Ann Redmayne (Mental Health Commissioner for South Devon 
and Torbay Shadow Clinical Commissioning Group) will be attending to 
discuss services for patients with dementia in Torbay. 
 



 

The attached presentation provides background information to the 
discussion. 
 

8.   Acquisition of Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS 
Trust 

(To Follow) 

 To receive an update on the current position in relation to the 
acquisition process for Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care 
NHS Trust. 
 

9.   Adult Social Care - Local Account (To Follow) 
 To consider the draft Local Account for adult social care in Torbay and 

make any comments to the Council. 
 

10.   Work Programme 2012/2013 (Pages 20 - 
28)  To agree the Work Programme for the Health Scrutiny Board for 

2012/2013. 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Health Scrutiny Board 
 

19 July 2012 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Councillor Barnby (In the Chair) 

 

Councillors Bent, Davies, Doggett, Hytche and Parrott 

 

 
1. Apologies  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mills. 
 

2. Committee Membership  
 
It was reported that, in accordance with the wishes of the Conservative Group, the 
membership of the Board had been amended to include Councillor Hytche in place 
of Councillor Thomas (J). 
 

3. Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 14 May 2012 were confirmed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

4. Urgent items  
 

The Board considered the item in Minute 9, and not included on the agenda, the 
Chairman being of the opinion that it was urgent by reason of special 
circumstances i.e. the matter having arisen since the agenda was prepared and it 
was unreasonable to delay a decision until the next meeting. 

 
5. Community Hospitals  

 
The Board received a briefing report which outlined the function of Community 
Hospitals, the services available and how these aligned with, and supported the 
transition from, acute care. 
 
As from April 2011, Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust (the 
Trust) managed eleven Community Hospitals with a total of 196 beds.  The two 
Community Hospitals in Torbay were based in Brixham (with 20 beds) and 
Paignton (with 28 beds). 
 
It was noted that the hospitals were open 24 hours a day, seven days a week and 
that they admitted, treated, rehabilitated and discharged patients.  They provided a 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



Health Scrutiny Board   Thursday, 19 July 2012 
 

multi-professional team response which was focussed on maximising the return to 
independence of patients through a short-stay in-patient admission. 
 
Each of the Community Hospitals in Torbay had a daytime Minor Injuries Unit and 
operated a wide range of therapy and out-patient services.  These services 
included those provided in-house as well as provided from South Devon 
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (i.e. Torbay Hospital) and Plymouth Hospitals 
NHS Trust (i.e. Derriford Hospital). 
 
The report went on to give details of the current performance of the Community 
Hospitals, the interaction with the Community Zone Teams and acute hospitals 
and the future challenges (such as the ageing population, increasing complexity of 
needs and increasing community based care). 
 
Representatives of the Leagues of Friends of Paignton and Brixham Hospitals 
attended the meeting and gave details of the work that they undertook.  It was 
noted that the Brixham League of Friends had raised the funds for improvements 
to Brixham Hospital and were now at Stage Three of the refurbishment. 
 
Concerns were raised about whether investment at Brixham Hospital would have 
an adverse effect on Paignton Hospital including its future viability. The Chief 
Executive of the Trust assured the Board that there were no plans for Paignton 
Hospital to close.  
 
The Board asked a number of questions of the Chief Executive including in 
relation to the use of one floor at Paignton Hospital for offices and the better use of 
the Community Hospitals for oncology treatment, chemotherapy and blood 
transfusions.  It was noted that Paignton Hospital was the base for multi-
disciplinary community zone teams. 
 
In response to one of the Board’s questions, the Chief Executive advised the 
Board that safeguarding procedures in relation to vulnerable adults needed to be 
made more accessible and that the Trust was looking at ways to make information 
more readily available through “easy read” versions of documents, etc. 
 
The Board heard that the added clinical value of community hospitals was not 
clear but needed to be quantified in comparison with, for example, nursing homes. 
 

Resolved:  (i)  that the members of the Leagues of Friends of Brixham and 
Paignton Hospitals be congratulated for their good work; 
 
(ii) that the Board receive the monthly League of Friends newsletter as 
part of the Health Digest; 
 
(iii) that, as part of its Work Programme, the Board define and assess 
the added clinical value of the Community Hospitals in conjunction with 
Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust; and 
 
(iv) that the Director of Professional Practice (Torbay and Southern 
Devon Health and Care NHS Trust) be asked to explore further the 

Page 2



Health Scrutiny Board   Thursday, 19 July 2012 
 

practicalities of using Community Hospitals for delivering other more 
specialist services. 

 
6. Learning Disabilities Service Update  

 
The Board received an update on the Learning Disabilities Services.  The Board 
was informed that Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust (the 
Trust) was continuing to work with the families of the residents of Occombe House 
to identify an alternative provider who will work with the families and residents to 
re-develop the site according to the needs of the residents, as identified in the best 
interest process. 
 
In relation to day services, the number and types of day services provided by the 
Trust were now focused at Hollacombe Community Resource Centre and Torquay 
Community Resource Centre with the first phase of these changes being the 
relocation of services previously provided at Fairwinds.  It was noted that a 
thorough market assessment of day opportunities in Torbay would be completed 
later in the year to determine the long term future of the remaining two Centres. 
 
The Board was reminded that, as of April 2012, short breaks were not longer 
provided at Occombe House.  Short breaks would continue to be provided at 
Baytree House.  All former clients of the short breaks service at Occombe House 
now had access to alternatives and are supported by the Community Learning 
Disabilities Team to ensure that their need continue to be met.  The Board 
requested a view on how the service has changed due to funding cuts.  
 

Resolved:  that the Chief Executive of the Trust be requested to produce a 
report on the volume and length of short breaks in comparison with 
previous years. 

 
7. Cost Improvement Plan  

 
The Board received an update on the Cost Improvement Plan for 2012/2013.  
Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust (the Trust) had identified 
cost saving programmes for adult social care amounting to £3.2 million. 
 
The Board raised concerns about the delivery of the plans for cost savings in 
domiciliary care.  
 
It was noted that implementation of the Cost Improvement Plan was discussed 
informally at the Adults Policy Development Group and the Board raised concern 
that this was duplicating the work of the Health Scrutiny Board. 
 

Resolved:  (i)  that the Chief Executive of the Trust continue to provide the 
Director of Adult Services with an updates of the Cost Improvement Plan 
including progress on proposed savings for Domiciliary Care; and 
 
(ii) that the Board consider joint working with Adults Policy Development 
Group were appropriate.  

Page 3



Health Scrutiny Board   Thursday, 19 July 2012 
 

8. Health Scrutiny Work Programme  
 
Consideration of this item was deferred to a future meeting. 
 

9. Local Authority Health Scrutiny - Proposals for Consultation  
 
It was noted that the Department of Health had published for consultation 
regulations governing local authority health scrutiny.  The deadline for submission 
of a response was 7 September 2012. 
 

Resolved:  that members of the Board meet informally to discuss their 
response to the consultation. 

 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
: 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

g
io

n
a

l 

a
n

d
 l

o
ca

l 
p

e
rs

p
e

ct
iv

e
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



W
h

a
t 

is
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

?
 

•
‘d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

’ 
 -

  

 
- 

sy
n

d
ro

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 b

e
 c

a
u

se
d

 b
y

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
il

ln
e

ss
e

s 

 
- 

 a
 p

ro
g

re
ss

iv
e

 d
e

cl
in

e
 i

n
 m

e
m

o
ry

, 
re

a
so

n
in

g
, 

co
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 s
k
il

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 

 
   

ca
rr

y
 o

u
t 

d
a

il
y

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s.

   

 
- 

m
a

y
 d

e
ve

lo
p

 B
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
a

n
d

 p
sy

ch
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
sy

m
p

to
m

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
d

e
p

re
ss

io
n

, 
p

sy
ch

o
si

s,
 

 
   

a
g

g
re

ss
io

n
 a

n
d

 w
a

n
d

e
ri

n
g

. 

 •
C

a
u

se
s 

- 
 n

o
t 

w
e

ll
 u

n
d

e
rs

to
o

d
 b

u
t 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 s

tr
u

ct
u

ra
l 

a
n

d
 c

h
e

m
ic

a
l 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 b
ra

in
 

le
a

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 d
e

a
th

 o
f 

b
ra

in
 t

is
su

e
. 

  

•
S

u
b

-t
y

p
e

s 
o

f 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 a
re

: 
A

lz
h

e
im

e
r’

s 
d

is
e

a
se

, 
v
a

sc
u

la
r 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
, 

m
ix

tu
re

s 
o

f 
th

e
se

 t
w

o
 

p
a

th
o

lo
g

ie
s 

(‘
m

ix
e

d
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

’)
 a

n
d

 r
a

re
r 

ty
p

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

Le
w

y
 b

o
d

y
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

, 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 i
n

 

P
a

rk
in

so
n

’s
 d

is
e

a
se

 a
n

d
 f

ro
n

to
-t

e
m

p
o

ra
l 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
. 

  

•
Im

p
a

ct
 -

 d
e

va
st

a
ti

n
g

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
o

se
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a

m
il

y
 c

a
re

rs
. 

 D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
s 

a
ff

e
ct

 a
ll

 i
n

 

so
ci

e
ty

 i
rr

e
sp

e
ct

iv
e

 o
f 

g
e

n
d

e
r,

 e
th

n
ic

it
y

 a
n

d
 c

la
ss

. 
 T

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 a
ff

e
ct

 a
d

u
lt

s 
o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 a

s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
o

ld
e

r 
a

d
u

lt
s.

  P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
re

 a
 g

ro
u

p
 a

t 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

ri
sk

 

•
D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 i
s 

a
 t

e
rm

in
a

l 
d

is
o

rd
e

r,
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 p
e

o
p

le
 m

a
y

 l
iv

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 f

o
r 

7
 –

 1
2

 

ye
a

rs
 a

ft
e

r 
d

ia
g

n
o

si
s.

 

Page 6



T
h

e
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 -

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 

E
s
ti

m
a

te
s
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 2
0
1
1

 
T
o

rb
a
y
 2

0
1
1
 

T
o

rb
a
y
 2

0
4
0
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 >
6
5
  

1
0
m

 
3
1
,0

0
0
 

3
8
,0

0
0
 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 >
8

5
  

3
m

 
5
,0

0
0
 

8
,0

0
0
 

D
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 P

re
v
a

le
n

c
e
  

6
7
0

,0
0
0
 

2
,3

0
0
 

5
,0

0
0
 

D
e
m

e
n

ti
a
 >

6
5
 (

%
) 

5
 

8
 

1
3
 

D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 i
n

 c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
s

  
2
2
5

,0
0
0
 

6
9
0
 

1
5
0
0
 

D
e
p

re
s
s

io
n

 
8
0
0

,0
0
0
 

2
4
8
0
 

3
0
0
0
 

D
e

p
re

s
s

io
n

 i
n

 c
a

re
 

h
o

m
e

s
 

6
0
,7

5
0
 

3
2
4
 

3
9
0
 

Page 7



T
h

e
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 –

 m
o

re
 f

a
ct

s 
  

 

•
E

st
im

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
4

2
%

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
 c

lo
se

 f
ri

e
n

d
/f

a
m

il
y
 

•
1

:3
 o

ve
r 

6
5

 w
il

l 
h

a
ve

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

y
 d

ie
  

•
1

/3
 r

e
ce

iv
e

 d
ia

g
n

o
si

s 

•
1

/3
 l

iv
e

 i
n

 c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
s,

 2
/3

 l
iv

e
 i

n
 o

w
n

 h
o

m
e

 

•
£

2
0

 b
il

li
o

n
 p

o
u

n
d

s 
(m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 c
a

n
ce

r,
 h

e
a

rt
 d

is
e

a
se

, 
st

ro
ke

) 

•
Im

p
a

ct
 a

cr
o

ss
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

•
Im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
y

 

 

Page 8



K
e

y
 t

h
e

m
e

s 

Lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
, 

li
fe

 l
im

it
in

g
 

•
C

h
ro

n
ic

 d
is

e
a

se
 p

ro
g

re
ss

io
n

 

•
H

ig
h

 p
re

va
le

n
ce

 i
n

 o
ld

e
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 (
1

:4
 o

ve
r 

8
0

) 

•
R

e
d

u
ce

d
 a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 l

o
o

k
 a

ft
e

r 
o

n
e

se
lf

, 
p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

e
sc

a
la

ti
o

n
 –

 r
e

li
a

n
ce

 o
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 

•
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
e

a
rl

y
 d

ia
g

n
o

si
s,

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

re
v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s 

•
C

o
-e

xi
st

e
n

ce
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
LT

C
 

•
S

tr
a

in
 o

n
 c

a
re

rs
 –

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

w
e

ll
-b

e
in

g
 

Page 9



K
e

y
 t

h
e

m
e

s 

W
h

o
le

 s
ys

te
m

, 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

  

 

•
N

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 t

ru
e

, 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

h
e

a
lt

h
, 

so
ci

a
l 

ca
re

, 
th

ir
d

 s
e

ct
o

r,
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

n
d

 

ca
re

rs
 

•
W

e
a

k
n

e
ss

 o
f 

o
n

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
–

 m
e

a
n

s 
co

ll
a

p
se

 o
f 

w
h

o
le

 p
a

ck
a

g
e

, 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 u

n
sc

h
e

d
u

le
d

 c
a

re
, 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 d
is

tr
e

ss
 

Page 10



S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
e

le
va

n
ce

 -
N

H
S

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 &

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s 

 

•
N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 2
0

0
9

 (
Li

v
in

g
 

W
e

ll
 w

it
h

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
) 

•
2

0
1

2
-1

3
 o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
s 

P
C

T
’s

 t
o

 

p
u

b
li

sh
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 

•
G

o
o

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 e
a

rl
y

 d
ia

g
n

o
si

s 
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

a
ll

 

•
Im

p
ro

ve
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
ca

re
 i
n

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 

H
o

sp
it

a
ls

 

•
Li

v
in

g
 w

e
ll

 w
it

h
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 i
n

 c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
s 

•
R

e
d

u
ce

d
 u

se
 o

f 
a

n
ti

p
sy

ch
o

ti
c 

d
ru

g
s 

Page 11



To
rb

a
y

 S
u

cc
e

ss
 

 

•
U

se
 o

f 
e

m
e

rg
e

n
cy

 b
e

d
 d

a
ys

 f
o

r 
a

g
e

d
 >

6
5

 i
s 

2
,0

2
5

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 i

n
 T

o
rb

a
y

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 o

f 
2

,7
7

8
 

p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 i

n
 t

h
e

 s
o

u
th

 w
e

st
 a

s 
a

 w
h

o
le

 

•
S

e
co

n
d

 l
o

w
e

st
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
 w

e
st

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 >

 6
5

 d
is

ch
a

rg
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

h
o

m
e

s 

•
O

n
e

 o
f 

lo
w

e
st

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
cu

te
 p

sy
ch

ia
tr

ic
 b

e
d

s 
p

e
r 

ca
p

it
a

 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 

•
T

C
T

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

ll
y

 r
e

g
a

rd
e

d
 

•
T

B
H

 H
S

J 
A

cu
te

 T
ru

st
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

e
a

r 

•
O

P
M

H
 m

o
d

e
l 

o
f 

ca
re

 h
ig

h
ly

 r
e

g
a

rd
e

d
 

 

Page 12



S
. 

D
e

vo
n

 a
n

d
 T

o
rb

a
y

 -
 d

is
ta

n
ce

 t
o

 t
ra

ve
l 

•
E

a
rl

ie
r 

d
ia

g
n

o
si

s 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s 

 
S

W
 P

C
Ts

’ 
m

e
a

n
 d

ia
g

n
o

si
s 

ra
te

 =
 4

0
%

 è
 6

0
%

 a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
 

•
H

o
sp

it
a

ls
’ 

re
co

g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
ct

io
n

 

 
co

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 2

0
%

 e
st

im
a

te
d

 p
re

va
le

n
ce

 

 
S

W
 H

o
sp

it
a

l 
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

–
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
 

h
o

sp
it

a
ls

 

•
B

e
tt

e
r 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 

 
fl

e
xi

b
le

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

; 
fl

e
xi

b
le

 r
e

sp
it

e
; 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

d
u

ra
ti

o
n

  

•
C

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s 
 

 
1

/3
 c

a
re

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
p

o
rt

 n
o

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

 
C

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s 
re

p
o

rt
 i

n
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
in

 r
e

a
ch

/s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

 
In

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

to
 h

o
sp

it
a

l 

•
T

ig
h

te
r 

p
re

sc
ri

b
in

g
 

 
A

n
ti

p
sy

ch
o

ti
cs

 &
 c

h
o

li
n

e
st

e
ra

se
 i

n
h

ib
it

o
rs

: 
A

n
ti

p
sy

ch
o

ti
cs

 –
 3

%
 

 

Page 13



T
H

E
 P

R
IM

E
 M

IN
IS

T
E

R
’S

 D
E

M
E

N
T

IA
 

C
H

A
LL

E
N

G
E

 (
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

2
) 

H
o

w
 w

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
: 

•
G

o
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 f
a

st
e

r 
o

n
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 –
 d

ri
v

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

in
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

 

•
In

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

f 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 –
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 

d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
a

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 

•
A

cc
e

le
ra

ti
n

g
 r

e
se

a
rc

h
 i

n
to

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 

Page 14



T
h

e
 p

ri
m

e
 m

in
is

te
r’

s 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

D
ri

vi
n

g
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
: 

•
In

cr
e

a
se

d
 d

ia
g

n
o

si
s 

ra
te

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

ch
e

ck
s 

fo
r 

o
ve

r 
6

5
s 

–
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

 q
u

a
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
m

b
it

io
n

 

•
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

re
w

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
h

o
sp

it
a

ls
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 q

u
a

li
ty

 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 c
a

re
 

•
In

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 P

ri
ze

 o
f 

£
1

 m
il

li
o

n
 N

H
S

 s
ta

ff
 –

 
in

n
o

va
ti

o
n

 i
d

e
a

s 
fo

r 
tr

a
n

sf
o

rm
in

g
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 c
a

re
 

•
A

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 C

a
re

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 C

o
m

p
a

ct
 s

ig
n

e
d

 b
y

 

le
a

d
in

g
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 h

o
m

e
 c

a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 

•
P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 l
o

ca
l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

Page 15



T
h

e
 p

ri
m

e
 m

in
is

te
r’

s 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

C
re

a
ti

n
g

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
a

t 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 h

e
lp

: 

•
D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

-f
ri

e
n

d
ly

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

ty
 

(u
p

 t
o

 2
0

 c
it

ie
s,

 t
o

w
n

s 
a

n
d

 v
il

la
g

e
s)

 

•
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

le
a

d
in

g
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 P

M
’s

 

C
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 –
 r

a
is

in
g

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 o

n
 D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 

•
A

w
a

re
n

e
ss

-r
a

is
in

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 –
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
u

tu
m

n
 

2
0

1
2

 –
 2

0
1

5
 

•
S

u
m

m
e

r 
–

 b
ri

n
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
U

K
 l

e
a

d
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 i
n

d
u

st
ry

, 

a
ca

d
e

m
ia

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

to
 t

a
ke

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 t

h
e

 P
M

’s
 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 

Page 16



T
h

e
 p

ri
m

e
 m

in
is

te
r’

s 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

 

B
e

tt
e

r 
re

se
a

rc
h

: 

•
M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 d
o

u
b

li
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 –
 6

6
m

 

•
M

a
jo

r 
in

v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
in

 b
ra

in
 s

ca
n

n
in

g
  
 

Page 17



H
o

w
 d

o
 w

e
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 P

M
's

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
e

?
 

A
im

 
M

e
th

o
d

s
 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

In
c
re

a
s

e
d

 d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

 r
a

te
s

 

G
P

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
/t

ra
in

in
g

 –
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

ta
ff

 

C
le

a
re

r 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

u
b

li
c

 –
 r

e
d

u
c

in
g

 s
ti

g
m

a
. 

D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 a

ll
ia

n
c

e
 

M
e

m
o

ry
 c

li
n

ic
–
 G

P
, 
P

H
C

T
 

E
a

rl
ie

r 
a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 &

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

d
e
la

y
s

 i
s

s
u

e
s
 

Q
O

F
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
re

w
a

rd
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
c

a
re

 

H
o

s
p

it
a

l 
s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 –

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 h

o
s

p
s

; 

C
Q

U
IN

 

S
c

re
e

n
in

g
; 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
d

in
g

 

M
H

 L
ia

is
o

n
; 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s
; 

T
ra

in
in

g
; 

 

F
e
w

e
r 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
ra

l 
is

s
u

e
s

 

S
h

o
rt

e
r 

s
ta

y
s
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

  

H
o

m
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

P
o

s
t-

d
ia

g
n

o
s
is

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

D
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 a

d
v
is

o
r/

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
o

rk
e
r,

 C
a

re
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

P
e

rs
o

n
-c

e
n

tr
e

d
 c

a
re

, 

R
e

d
u

c
e

d
 c

ri
s

e
s

 

D
e

la
y
e

d
 e

n
tr

y
 t

o
 c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

 

S
h

o
rt

e
r 

a
c
u

te
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s

 

C
a
re

 h
o

m
e
s
 

S
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

in
g

; 
 

K
it

e
 m

a
rk

s
 

In
 r

e
a

c
h

/l
ia

is
o

n
 

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

A
c

u
te

 a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

P
re

s
c

ri
b

in
g

 
A

u
d

it
 –

 a
n

ti
 p

s
y
c

h
o

ti
c

s
 

P
ro

to
c
o

ls
 –

 s
h

a
re

d
 c

a
re

r 

N
o

n
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
–
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 c
h

a
ll

e
n

g
in

g
 

b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

S
a

fe
r 

p
re

s
c

ri
b

in
g

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

C
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 b

o
o

k
le

t,
 “

T
h

is
 i
s

 m
e

”
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
w

e
b

s
it

e
 

A
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
s

 

A
d

v
a

n
c

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

Page 18



C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 

•
D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 n
e

ve
r 

b
e

e
n

 h
ig

h
e

r 
o

n
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 

•
N

e
ve

r 
h

a
d

 a
 g

re
a

te
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
li

ve
r 

re
a

l 
a

n
d

 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

•
W

e
 m

u
st

 n
o

t 
w

a
st

e
 t

h
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 

•
W

e
 m

u
st

 a
ll

  
w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 d
e

li
ve

r 
th

is
 c

h
a

n
g

e
! 

Page 19



 
 
 

Title: Health Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2011/2012 
 

Public Agenda Item: Yes 
 

Wards Affected: All 
  

To: Health Scrutiny Board On: 4 October 2012 
    
Key Decision: No   
   

Change to Budget: No Change to 
Policy 
Framework: 

No 
 

   

Contact Officer: Kate Spencer 
℡ Telephone: 01803 207014 
�  E.mail: kate.spencer@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
1. What we are trying to achieve and the impact on our customers 
 
1.1 To ensure that the Health Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 

2012/13 is robust and realistic but also flexible enough to enable emerging 
issues of concern to be addressed.  This will help ensure that overview and 
scrutiny is both improving and safeguarding health services for the people of 
Torbay.  A successful scrutiny function would also have a positive impact on 
our customers as the community would be involved in the work being 
undertaken and the outcomes of that work would be focused on the 
community’s needs. 

 
2. Recommendation(s) for decision 
 
2.1 That the Health Scrutiny Work Programme for 2012/13 set out in 

Appendix 1 to this report be approved. 
 
3. Key points and reasons for recommendations 
 
3.1 The Constitution requires that, early in the Municipal Year, the Overview and 

Scrutiny Board will co-ordinate the production of a Work Programme for the 
function as a whole.  At its meeting on 20 June 2012 the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board was advised that a Health Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme would be agreed at the next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Board 
although the decision was deferred at this meeting. 

 
3.2 In May 2012, a questionnaire was sent to all members of the Council asking 

them to identify three issues within their wards which they felt should be 
subject to scrutiny together with three Bay-wide issues.  The Mayor, Directors 
and Executive Heads were also asked for their views on the Bay-wide issues 

Agenda Item 10

Page 20



which should be considered and the Council’s health partners were asked to 
identify issues which may need to be subject to scrutiny.  Whilst it was 
acknowledged that there will not be space within the Work Programme to 
consider every issue it was hoped that some themes would emerge on the 
issues which the two scrutiny Boards could investigate to the benefit of the 
community as a whole. 

 
3.3 The document attached as Appendix 1 has been prepared taking account of 

the suggestions received from the consultation exercise and subsequent 
informal discussions with the Health Scrutiny Lead, the Director of Adults 
Services and Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS Trust. 

 
 
For more detailed information on this proposal please refer to the supporting 
information attached. 
 
Mark Bennett 
Executive Head (Business Services)

Page 21



Supporting information  
 
A1. Introduction and history 
 
A1.1 The Work Programme for the Health Scrutiny Board has been developed 

around two, inter-linked themes – namely, reducing demand on acute 
services and services for the elderly.  Rather than undertaking in-depth 
reviews, it is suggested that the Health Scrutiny Board will employ similar 
methods to the Overview and Scrutiny Board such as site visits, consideration 
of case studies, attendance at health partner events whilst keeping in mind its 
key lines of enquiry for the year.  Time will also need to be allowed for the 
consideration of any possible substantial variations in services or referrals 
from the Torbay LINk.  Further, the Health Scrutiny Work Programme will be 
shared with health scrutiny colleagues in neighbouring authorities to avoid 
duplication and possibly undertake shared work. 

 
A2. Risk assessment of preferred option 

A2.1 Outline of significant key risks 
 
A2.1.1 A critical success factor will be members’ commitment to the work 

programme.  Members need to be sure that these issues are matters which 
can help improve and safeguard health services for the people of Torbay.  
Members need to be willing to commit time and energy into identifying key 
questions, meeting and discussing issues with other members, officers and 
consultees, reading and challenging the information presented to them, and 
drawing conclusions, considering options appraisals and risk assessments, 
and formulating recommendations. 

 
A2.1.2 Health Scrutiny Board members need to receive information and support from 

local NHS bodies; however, local NHS bodies are under a statutory duty to 
provide overview and scrutiny with any information about the planning, 
provision and operation of health services as it may reasonably require to 
undertake effective scrutiny. 

 
A2.1.3 The changing national political arena may lead to initiatives and changed 

priorities during the year and the work programme may need to be amended 
as a result.  Members are reminded that the work programme must have 
sufficient capacity to respond to requests from the NHS to consider service 
change proposals. 

 
A2.1.4 If members are not committed to the Health Overview and Scrutiny Work 

Programme and to making overview and scrutiny a worthwhile mechanism to 
improve the lives of the community of Torbay (and if they do not receive 
adequate support from officers or information from local NHS bodies), then 
there is a risk that positive outcomes cannot be shown to have been achieved 
by Overview and Scrutiny.  

 
A2.2 Remaining risks 
 
A2.2.1 There are none at the time of writing. 
 
 

Page 22



A3. Other Options 
 
A3.1 Members may wish to add to, or delete, or change any of the items within the 

work programme set out in Appendix 1. 
 
A4. Summary of resource implications 
 
A4.1 The proposed Work Programme can be delivered within the resources 

available provided that members are willing to give their time and energy. 
 
A5. What impact will there be on equalities, environmental sustainability and 

crime and disorder? 
 
A5.1 Each review will take account of these issues. 
 
A6. Consultation and Customer Focus 
 
A6.1 The draft Work Programme has been prepared taking account of the views 

expressed by the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinator, Scrutiny Lead 
Members, the Mayor and all other Members of the Council, senior Council 
officers, and health partner organisations. 

 
A6.2  Each review will aim to involve the community through consultation and 

possible co-option. 
 
A7. Are there any implications for other Business Units? 
 
A7.1 The relevant Executive Heads will be involved in the work of overview and 

scrutiny especially at the scoping, options appraisal, and risk assessment 
stages as well as providing information to members as part of each review. 

 
 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Health Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2012/2013 
 
Documents available in members’ rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Papers: 
 
None 
 
  

Page 23



Health Scrutiny Work Programme 2012/2013 

1. Background 

1.1 All members of the Council, senior officers and representatives from the NHS 
organisations that work with the Health Scrutiny Board were asked for their 

views on the topics or issues which should be the subject to review over the 

course of the year. 

1.2 The topics put forward are set out in the Appendix to this report. 

1.3 This report makes suggestions for the Work Programme for the Health 

Scrutiny Board for the forthcoming Municipal Year. 

2. Methods of Working 

2.1 There are a range of options open to the members of the Health Scrutiny 

Board to carry out their work: 

Health Scrutiny Board 
Health Scrutiny Liaison Group 
Site Visits 
Attendance at NHS Trust/provider/partnership meetings and events 
Adults Policy Development Group 
Councillor Policy Briefings 
 

2.2 Not all members of the Health Scrutiny Board need to attend every meeting 
and/or event.  However, members will need to provide feedback to other 
members of the Board so that the information they receive can help inform 

the work of the Board overall. 

3. Themes for the Year 

3.1 Members will recall that the theme that ran throughout the Quality Accounts 
that the Board received at the final meeting of the last Municipal Year was 

reducing pressure on acute services.  

3.2 In looking at the topics which were put forward for consideration during the 

Work Programme consultation, many fitted into the category of “care for the 
elderly”. 

3.3 It is suggested that these two, interlinked issues provide the overarching 

theme for the work of the Health Scrutiny Board for 2012/2013.  Rather than 

undertaking specific, stand-alone reviews, topics will be considered 
throughout the year (in the forums listed in 2.1) and the findings and views of 

the Board will be amalgamated into a report towards the end of the year. 

4. Scope, Key Lines of Enquiry and Timetable 

4.1 A draft scope (including key lines of enquiry) which will form the basis of the 
work of the Health Scrutiny Board is attached for discussion.  A draft 

timetable for the year is also attached. 

Page 24



Services for the elderly 

Reducing demand on acute services 

SCOPE AND KEY LINES OF ENQUIRY 

To gain an understanding of the demographics of Torbay and who is responsible for 
commissioning and delivering services. 

 

• What does the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment tell us about the 
demographics of Torbay? 

o How skewed is the population towards older people? 

o What are their health and social care needs? 

o How are these needs being met? 

o What will be the needs of the next generation of older people? 

• What are the emerging priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board? 

o How does the Health and Wellbeing Strategy fit with the Community 
Plan? 

o What consultation will be undertaken? 

o How are all partners ensuring that the priorities for Torbay are 
articulated coherently within their own plans? 

• Where does the responsibility lie for commissioning and providing services 
for the elderly? 

To review the range of work that is underway within Torbay (including within the 
Third Sector) to reduce the demand on acute services. 
 

• What preventative work is being undertaken to reduce demand on acute 
services? 

o How are partners working together to reduce demand? 

o What’s the evidence of this work having an effect on demand? 
o What work is being undertaken within the Third Sector to reduce 

demand? 

o What further support is needed in the Third Sector? 

o What’s the impact of public sector spending cuts? 

To consider a number of case studies in relation to services for the elderly. 

 

• Residential care homes 
o What is the make up of the residential care homes sector in 

Torbay?  How does this compare with other similar authorities? 
o How is care within these homes commissioned? 

Page 25



o What is the relationship between the care homes sector, the 

Council and Torbay and Southern Devon Health and Care NHS 
Trust? 

o What levels of care should the elderly expect within these homes?  

How is this monitored?  Where does the responsibility lie? 

o What methods are used to bring homes up to standard?  What is 
the timescale for this improvement?  What happens if they don’t 

improve? 

o What is the measurable impact of reducing public sector funding? 
 

• Community Hospitals 
o What role do the community hospitals in Torbay play?  How are 

elderly people rehabilitated after an acute hospital stay? 

o What services are provided? 
o How do they help prevent pressure on acute services?  What value 

can be placed on the role of community hospitals in Torbay?  How 

is this recognised by partners? 
o What is the role of the League of Friends? 

o How sustainable are the community hospitals? 

o What measures are being taken to reduce wastage within the 

community hospitals (e.g. unused medicines/dressings, missed 
appointments)? 

 

• Falls Prevention 
o Why is falls prevention an important issue? 

o How are agencies working together to reduce the number of falls? 
o How well are we doing at reducing falls?  What impact is this 

having? 

 
• Dementia Services 

o What is dementia?  What are its impacts – on patients? on carers? 
on the wider community? 

o What services are provided in Torbay for people with dementia? 
o How do we compare – regionally? nationally? 
o How are services linked together?  How effectively is this working? 

The Dementia Challenge 

o How do we create dementia friendly communities? 
o How could health and care for people with dementia and their 

carers be improved? 

 

 
 

Page 26



 

 

 Health Scrutiny 
Board 

Liaison Group 
Site 

Visits/Meetings 
Health and 

Wellbeing Board 

July 

19 July 2012 

Cost Improvement Plan 

Learning Disabilities 

Service Update 

Community Hospitals 
Community Hospitals – 

League of Friends 

- 

5 July 2012 

Chairman to meet CE of St 

Kilda’s  

 

5 July 2012 

August - -   

September - 

4 September 2012 

Agenda Planning 

(October) 

Longer Term View for 

Adult Social Care 

26 September 2012 

Right Care Open Day 

(SWAST) 

 

20 September 2012 

October 

4 October 2012 

Dementia Services 

Acquisition Process – 

TSDHCT 

Adult Social Care Local 

Account 

- 

16 October 2012 

Visit to SWAST 

Headquarters 

 

November 
tbc 

Care Home Provision 
-  22 November 2012 

December - 

20 December 2012 

Agenda Planning 

(February) 

  

January - -  17 January 2013 

February 

21 February 2012 

Falls Prevention 

Care Homes - Contract 

management/quality 

training 

-   

March    21 March 2013 

April  
4 April 2012 

Agenda Planning (May) 
  

May 

8 May 2012 

Quality Accounts x 4 

Health Scrutiny Board’s 

Report 

   

  

P
age 27



 

 

 
Topics suggested through consultation process 
 
Drugs 
Foundation Trust status 
Deprivation 
Future services for the elderly – what should they expect/what do they deserve 
Care home provision/fees 
Priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
How to reduce demand for high cost adult social care 
Transition of children to adults services 
Impact of cost reduction plans 
Alcohol and supermarket licensing 
Impact of welfare reform > On individuals > On services 
Changes to adoption standards 
Cost and efficiency of children’s and adults services 
How to reduce demand for high cost children’s services 
 
 P

age 28


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Dementia Services
	10 Work Programme 2012/2013

